
United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
FOIITY-SE(:ON() SESSION·

OJJkltlJ R,cord,·

SECOND COMMI1~~~

Fifth meeting
held on

Wednesday, 7 Oc tober l'JB 7
at .} p.m.

New YorK

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FI!.PTH MEETING

Cnairmanl Mr. OUDOVENKO /Ukralnlan Sociallst RepUblic)

COl\ITENTS

GENERAL DEBATE (continued)

-Thi, r«ord ,. 'Ubj«IIO u ....roc:fion. (·OfI9CUun. mould be ..... ulllldlr lhe ai,MIl.,. 01, nwmbe, of the deM­
••"on ~·()ft(;4!rnod wi,"j,. ('''1' w#" f~f Ill, da't III pWHl.wI;{)II 10 If" ChM' of the Offk; ..1 R«OI'd. EdlltllJ S«Uun.

ronm OC2 ·7~. 2 ~Iniled NIIIOM Piu..•nd iftl;~ In I copy oIlhe I"kord.

B7-55'J21 ObOlti (~)

D.\str. GENERAL
AlC. 2/42/SR. 5
16 october 1987
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL' SPANISH

I . ..



A/C.2/42/SR.5
Bnglish
Page 2
~

Th£ meeting was called to order a~ 3.05 p.m.

GENBRAL DEBATE (continued)

1. Mr. MONTES (Guatemala), speaking on behalf Of the Group of 77, said that the
critical international economic situation had brought in its wake the deterioration
of the development process in the countries of the Group of 77. Those countries
had to face persistently high real interest rates, a fall in commodity prices, a
revers. transfer of resources, growing protectionism in the developed countries and
the worsening of the external debt crisis.

2. The debt crisis had a particular impact on developing countries, which had
made considerable adjustment efforts in response to the requirements of the
international financial institutions and the comroercial banks. However, those
efforts had resulted in serious political, economic and social tensions as well as
higher unemployment and rece6siorl. Furthermore, the crisis persisted. Therefore,
it was clear that the strategy applied thus far had been ineffective, underlining
the ne~ to promote a political dialogue between debtors and creditors on the basis
of shared responsibility. Such a dialogue should be base~ on General Assembly
resolution 41/202 and should lead to a comprehensive, equi:able solution focused on
development. Concurrently, the creditor countries and institutions should
substantially reduce the growing debt and its servicing, renegotiate the conditions
of the debt and enable developing countries to be granted discounts in the
secondary markets. Moreover, it was necessary to promote the recyclino of the
trade 8urpluses of the developed countries, in~rease resource flows to the
developin) countries and open up international markets to the developing countries'
exports through the elimination of protectionist barriers in the developed
countrieR. Lastly, there should be a direct and equitable relationship between
debt payments and the factors determining the capacity of debtor countries to pay,
including import earnings, terms of exchange and import requirements.

3. T~e implementation of those guidelines was of paramount importance. In fact,
as the Ministers for Foreign Affairs of the Group of 77 had Lftcently pointed out,
for want of a joint strategy involving all the parties concerned, the debtor
countries would be obliged to suspend debt servicing. Moreover, the debt problem
had brought out the inequities of the international monetary and financial system.
Henc., an internfttional conCerence should be convened to analyse the dir~ct

relationship between monetary resources, finance, the extern~l debt and capital
flows.

4. The search for solutions focused on the development of the developing
countries should also be based on the achievements made at the sAventh session of
the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD), which were a
common denominator for attal ing international understanding O~i the basis of shared
re.ponsibility. For their pdrt, the developing countries were aware of th~ir

obligations to improve the social and material we~fare of their peoples and were
promoting a .eries of measure8 to that end. They had recognized the need to
strengthen policies aiming to maximize the use of internal resources, they were
convinced of the necessity to establish favourable conditions for attracting
external resource. and for making more effective use of them, and they recognized

I ...



A/C.2/42/SR.')
English
Page ]

(Mr. Montes, Guatemala)

the pressing need to prall e economic co-operation between the developing countries
as a means of achieving collective self-sufficiency and development in accordanLe
with the Caracas Programme of Action and the Buenos Aires Plan of Action. However,
it must be reiterated that the economic and technical co-operation programmes
undertaken by the developing countries should serve as a complement which would
strengthen international co-operation, and not as a substitute for it.

5. Without prejudice to the foregoing, ~md given the interdependence of the
conte~)rary world, it was ~3sential for all countries to adopt economic measures
which w()uld prallote development through the redress of imbalances and the
~Dltilateral surveillance of economic policies. For their p~rt, the developed
c~untrie8 should help to strengthen the production capacity of the developing
countries, open up their markets to exports from those countries, undertake
structural adjustments, increase the public and private resource flows to the
developing countries and intensify their economic assistance programmes.

6. The world economic crisis had had particularly severe implications for island
and land-locked developing countrie' and, in general, for the least developed
countcies. Consequently, the Member States should give hiqher priority to the
implementation of the Substantial New Programme of Action for the 1980s in favour
of the least developed countries, as well as the recomn,.~ndlltions referring t. the
review of that Programme. In that regard, the need to increase the flow of
financial resources for development had particular importance.

7. With regard to environmental protection, which was another fundamental as(~ct

of international coexistence, he recalled that the Droblems af feet lng the
environmel.t were global in nature. Consequently, when tackling those ~roblemll, the
ext~nt to which those countries helped to spread them, as well as their capacity to
contribute to their solution should be taken into account. It was necessary to
increase the multilateral assistance which developing countries received to promote
environmental protec~ion programmes. The developing countries thus viewed with
concern the trend in sane international financial institut!.ons to make the
provision of financial resour~es subject to environmental considerations, because
enVlronmental protection could only be based on the solution to the problems of
poverty, debt, internat onal inequality and development.

8. The Group of 77 reiterated its determination fully to implement the Vienna
Programme of Action on Science and Technology for Development, and expressed its
support for the activities of the Centre for Science and Technoloyy for Development
and of the Advisory Committee on the Application of Science and Technology to
Development. Whatever administrative change or amendment of the procedures for
presenting reports might be introduced in the United Nations system, they should
not affect the autonany of the Centre or its capacity to carry out its mandate.

9. Lastly, the establishment of a new international ecunumic order based on
equality and justice required a concerted effort on the part of the international
community. The Group of 77 repeated its faith in multilateralism and in the United
Nations system as the appropriate forum to search for solutions to international
economic problems.

/ ...



Ale. 2/42/SR. 'l
En'] I lsb
Page 4

10. Mr. DADAWI (Egypt) said that he would not refer to the causes of the cur rent
internatio~al eC')nomic crisis. They were described in detail in the reports of
various institutions and had been tho~vughly analysed by the Uni~ed Nations
Conference on Trade and Development and "the Economic and Social Council. His
deleqaL ion understood that the General Assembly should make Qptimur.. uoe of the time
available if it endea1JOured to perform the policy-guid"\nce role entrusted to it
tinder the Charter. In addition, the General Assembl~ should give new impetus to
che progr~ss which had already been achiev..,d in those forums. He would thus focus
his ~tatement 01 two subjects, the external debt crisis and the critical economic
situation in Africa.

11. One of the most devastating problems for both developing and developed
countries was that of external indebtedness It had been discussed, either
separately or as one of the interrelated issues of money, finance and trade and
their impact on growth 'nd development. Mornover, the General Assembly, in its
re~iOJ.lIt ion 41/202, had adopted gUidelines for a glob1..1 and durable ,solution to the
debt problem whic., would promote development. The Second Committee must maintain
the momentum and should therefore define specific approaches and ~easures conducive
to a prompt, viable and dura~le solu~ion to the problem.

12. Despite strenuous efforts by deve] ~ing countries at policy reforms, usually
wi lh high social and poll lical costs, they had not been able to harmOllize
ad just.ment wi th growth. The Cduse had been unfavourable internat ional cond i tions,
char~:terized by high interest rates, negative resource flows, lack of access to
credit ~ commercial ~anks and depressed commodity prices. As a result, an
increasL number of deve'~ping countries were finding it difficult to maintain
the ir debt-service payments.

13. A vi able strategy for resolving the debt problem must be based on the
following elements: debtor countries must respect the obligations they had
contracted voluntarilYI the teek of solving the debt problem was the responsibility
of both debtors and creditors, any arrangements for debt-servicing payments should
take fll'lly into consideration the requ irements of growth and develOl.ment as well as
social and political stability a~] peace in the debtor developing countries; the
debt problem should be addressed on the basis of an integrated approach without
prejudice to the efforts of developing countries to reach agreement with their
creditors on alleviating the debt burden; there was a need to write down the
official and concessional debt of a number of low-income countries, debt
rescheduling should be approached on the basis of innovative mechanisms and
concepts; it was essential to increase substantially the flow of resources to
deve loping countr ies.

14. The constructive dial~Jue in the United Nations sho~ld continue and all
parties must demonstrate the necessary political will loqether with awareness that
a rigid and unenlightened pn8iti~n would be detrimental to a~l reembers of the
int.er'"1utional community.

15. The critical economic situation in Africe:. persisted and, indeed, was
deteriorating further. The adoption by the General Assembly ef the Programme of
ActIon for African Economic Recovery and Development had created great hopes but,

I ...



A/C.2/42/SR.5
English
Paqe 5

(Mr. Badawi, Egypt)

although many African IGo'HHnments had complied with their commitments and had
adopted flor-reaching and politically costly IMtASUreS for stluctural adjustment,
those hopes had been daBhcd by the lack of external financial resources. As both
H.E. Mr. Kenneth Kaunda, President of Zambia and current Chairman of OAU, and the
Secretary-General of 011' United Nations had pointed out, the int..cnational
cOl11lluni ty had not I iVl!d IIp to its coll111i tment co provide financial support for the
a<:ljllstme:lt e.i:fort, of African countries.

16. The tlsflistance of t.te Internlt ional cOll'llluni ty in terms of a substant ia1
increase in official de'V't!lopment assistance, remunerative cOI1I1lodity prices and the
adoption of more eff~ctJ~e measures to provide substantial debt relief remained
crucial to the economic recovery and development efforts of the African countries.
It was to be hoped that the discussion cl the iti.lm in the General Assembly would
lead to renewed support for the ProgrL'l11IIle of Action from the international
community.

17. Mr. WooDI {Algeri,ll reminded the COll'llllctee that the world economic s.ltuation
continued to be charact~~rized by serious structural disaquilibriurr., by a multiform
crisiti and multipl ier effects whi.ch, with no prospect of solution in sight, had
spread beyon,j the purely economir: field and threatened international peace and
security.

18. The historical limits to the rules and mechanisms which regulated the current
system of international economic relations had become manifest. It had been
alleged t'hat the precarious economic re~overy which had taken place in recent years
in certain developed countries would have favournble repercussions in the
developing countries, but it had done no more than transfer the centres of
recession to the developing countries, through international trade and financial
mechanisms, thus aggr~vating the economic 8ituati~ of the latter and deepening the
economic, social and technological abyss which separated them from the rest of the
world.

19. That result was foreseeable, since recovery had not been based on objl~tive

economic realities but on the negation of the basic interests of the great majority
of mankind. The macro-economic policies which the great industrial Powers had
implemented without the necessary co-ordination had made it possible to brake
inflation but only to the detriment of growth and errployment and at the cost. of
painful sacrifices by the developing countries. Deflationary measured, the
discrim:lnatory distortion of the rules of international trade, the substantial drop
in commodity prices and the huge reverse transfer of resources had aggravated the
economic prospects of the developing countries.

20. Faced by an international economic environment in conytant decline over which
they had no influence whatever, the develop~ng countries had been o~liged to
renounce their legitimate aspirations for development and to adopt austerity
measures which, in a context of diminishing export earnings and exter.nal financing,
accompanied by increaned debt service, had led to substantial reductions in
productive and social investment. The general reduction of imports threatened to
stifle the pr.ecarious productive infrastructure. Mon'over, the so-called

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR.5
English
~age 6

(~joudi, Algeria)

adjustment policies l~sed on tht! devel~ing countries had led to the collapse of
monet ory and commercial mechanisms regarded as indispensable for the protection of
the infant productive capacity of the developing countries. Such adjustment
policies, accompanied by serious social and poUtical costs, represented a
long-term danger not only to the capacity of the developing countries to satisfy
their essential needs but also to the fulfilment of their international financial
obligations.

21_ The current international consensus on the need for adjustment "with a human
face" and for a development-oriented global strategy to solve the debt crisi~ had
not been translated into firm measvres and the ill-fated policies of the past
continued to prevail. In addition, the international dialogue wa. deadlocked so
that there were scanty pr,,)spects for the restructuring of international econoluic
relations consistent with the nflW international economic order.

22. The United Nations could not be more than what its Hent>ec States wished and
administrative reforms would be useless without the refo1'111 of the political
attitudes which had hindered the hllrmonious ",-hievement of the objectiveu of the
Organization.

23. Hr. ALZAMORA (Peru) said that the Second COlllllif:tee was meetin" at a time wh~n

development problems were worsening, a solution was oeing delayed and the
international co-operation which was needed for a solution was disintegrating. As
• result of discriminatory trader the unjust distribution of international
liquidity and rules of the game which were always unfavourable to them, the
majority of the ~ember states of the United Nations found it impossible to exercise
their right to development and sovereiqnty as free and independent peoples. The
right to development was more than the right to perform specified mercantile
operations: it entailed the right to live with dignity, without threats and in
freedom.

24. It was the duty of States to perform their ineluctable role of defendinq the
interests of their peoples in order to escablish just societies and attain the
obi ect ives of nat ional deve lopment, which were be ing threatened by an lnternllt. ional
sLucture of danination and exploitation aff.-cling both U,e public and private
sectors.

25. The fundamental problem continued to stem from the structural injustice of
Nortt'-South relations and the international economic eysteJl. 'lich Buatained it.
The clearest expression of that imbalance was the increase in indebtedness, which
aggravated the already inadmisRible net transfer ot resource. from poor to ri~h

countries. In 1980, Latin America's debt had be.'n '250 billion, currently, despite
having paid the North $150 billion, the debt had grow., to $400 billion. Peoples
were becoming increasingly aware of the injustice of that ~ituatlon and Governments
had to act accordingly if they did not wish to 108e their political stability,
comp10mise the auth~rity oi civil power or jeopardize the democratic system and
national security. An increasing number of third world C:;overnments were making
their own decisions. In Lat 111 America alone, seven countries had already announced
a total or partial fuoratorium on debt repayment.

/. ·.



A/C. 2/42/SR. S
En~lish

PAg" 7

(Mr. AlzAmorA, Peru)

26. The three mAjor debtor countries of LAtin J~eriCA were going to Act jointl\ in
the future And the 11 countries of the MCArtAgenA consensusM, the principal Latin
AmericAn debtors, had ro.ctivated that plan for joint Action. A similar
mobilizAtion of efforts WAS taking place in All regions. Mr. KAunda, in his
statement in the GenerAl Assembly as Pre8ident of the OrgAniZAtion of African Unity
on 6 October 1987, had empha8ized the urgent need to stem the serious drain of
resource. experienced by the countrie8 of the SOuth And chAnnel them towArds
development for 8urvival, the realistic 801ution of the debt problem and the
stability And balAnce (',1' the world econOlllY.

27. UnfortunAtely, the creditor8 continued to lack vision And foresight. The
idd4& outlined in the recent meeting of the World BAnk And the InternAtionAl
Monetary Fund (IMF) were VAriations on the same old themes lend more to debtor8
beCAuse they could not pay their debts, the result WAS An even higher debt they
could not hope to pay. According to the Executive Secrp,tary of the Economic
Commission for Latin America and the CaribbeAn, the amount of net transfers outside
the region in the pa8t five years eqUAlled thAt of the reAl re80urces received in
the past 20 years.

28. He was convinced thAt the 80lution of the problem WAB not to increaae the debt
but to reduce it to its legitimate, real proportions, before it became distorted by
lini lAteral increAses in the interest, self-interested refinAncing, protectioni8l'O
and the deteriorAtion of trade relations. To decide if that reAdju8tment was to be
made by the bank8 or the c~editor Governments, the Mcase-by-caseM criteriA could
certAinly be applied, whereas, for the debtor countries, the criterion of
bilAterAliHm concealed the intention to bring pr~asure upon them not to constitute
a Mdebtor's clubMand hl,.I 8erved only to provoke An increA8ing number of unilateral
actions as A legitimate defence.

29. It was increAsingly necessary foe the debtor developing countries to form an
Minterregional contact groupM which would prepAre the inevitAble, urgent
negotiations between debtors And creditor8 in order to establish a more just and
conatructive sitUAtion in North-South econOlllic' relations.

30. The SpeCiAl conference on th, debt problem to be held in D~cember 1987 by the
African Heads of State and the concurrent meeting of the Heads of State of the
eight most heAVily indebted Latin American countries would provide the debtors with
fresh ~portunities for coo-ordination and orientation and proposals for
understanding and co-operation between debtor8 and creditors. The same could be
aaid nf the current .e88ion of the Committee. to which the delegation of Peru
offered its most con8tructive suprort.

31. Mr. LUCAS (Clyana) said that, although several countries had experienced
economic improvt ..ent8 de8pite the un8atisfactory 8tAte of the world econOlllY, manv
others, partiCUlarly in the developing world, continued to find it difficult to
cope with the problems of development - because of their depres.ed revenue8 and
their heavy ~nternational financial commitments - and their economic prospects were
negative. They could not emulate the few countries which had been succ.ssful
becLuae their actions were repeatedly hampered by negat've development. in the

I . ..



A/C.2/42/SR.5
English
Page 8

t

(Hr. I,ucas, Guyana)

,~rld economyr for example, as the Under-Secretary-General for Development and
International Economic and Social Affeirs had pointed out in his statement, the
mod~st expansion of trade forecast for the next few years, attributable to the
decline in domestic demand in the industrial count~ies.

32. Trade problems extended to the intensely debated issue of greater access for
the exports of developing countries to the markets of the developed. ,onomies. The
application of the rul~s of trade WillS motivated more by self-intere8t than by an
appreciation of the role that buoyant trade could play in rejuvenating the global
economy. In the current situation, there was an ever-increasing danger of a
resurgence of protectionism.

33. Obviou8 breaches in conmi tment to stand8t ill and rollba.~k of prices were being
reinforced by the i~position of protectioni8t mea8ures against import8 from
developing countrie8. That practice was gaining in inten8ity jU8t when the
negotiations of the uruguay Round a8 a way of injecting greater 8tability and
fairness into the international trading sy8t.m were inspiring a mea8ure of
optimi8m. It had been pointed out that the number of measures adopted by
Goverllments to circumvent the rules of th0 General Agreement on Tariffs alld
Trade (GATT) had increased from 93 in the six months prior to the Punta del Este
meeting to 116 in the six month8 that followed. Despite the hopes arou8ed by the
Uruguay Round, the need to dismantle protectionist barriers and restore confidence
in the international trading system shouLd not be overlooked.

34. The fragility of the global economic recovery was also evident in the
commodity market. Although the prices of some commodities had recovered, bringing
with them much-needed revenues to poor countries, price8 for most of them remained
wellk or showed a marked tendency to fluctuate. Under those COnditions, many
deVeloping countrie8 found themselves struggling to meet their domestic and
international oblig~tions. However, the positive outcome of the recent session of
UNCTAD marked a revival of int~rnational co-operation in that area.

35. A~ a direct consequenc~ of the gloomy ~~nditions of commodity markets, access
to official financing con~inued to be a key factor if developing countries hoped to
avoid a further decline in revenu~a. Immediate action was eS8ential to forestall a
further deterioration of the economies of the third world and make structural
adju8tments a viable mechani8m for restoring sustained growth. At the same time,
the effectivene8s of th& compens/ltory financing facUity of the IMF had to be
improved. An inflow of funds to expand ita capacity would be necessary, but iL was
highly ?robable that the recovery efforts of developing countries would be further
stimulated if drawing limits reflected more clQeely the medium-term financial needs
and repurchase prospects of individual borrowers.

36. The financial needs of that category of developing countries called to mind
other issues of finance affecting all third world countrie8r for example, the
alarming levels'reached in the transfer of resource. from developing to developed
countries and the decline in both conceEsional and non-conce••ional lending by the
international financial institutions. To reverse those negative tendencies, the
financial resources al/ailable to developing countries must be increased. Another

/ ...



A/C.2/42/BV.5
English
Page 9

(Mr. tucas, Guyanft)

very positive measure would be the ~eview of adjustment programmes by the Fund, aB
pointed out by the Director General. It was to be hoped that the differing
conditions between countries would be taken into account. Where unforeseeable
factor. gave rise to adverse growth trends, resources rhould be made available to
support growth programmes. In addition, flexibility should be applied to
quanl:itative targets a~ longer periods allowed for demand adju.tment policies to
take effect.

37. The exercise sh~uld take place in a forum that permitted the full and equal
participation of the developing countries, such as the International Conference on
Money and Finance proposed by the Group of 77. At all events, the reforms would
have to be extensive if the International Monetary Fund and the world Bank were to
contribute to a new financial and monetary system that was more supp)rtive of the
efforts of the developing countries.

38. No consideration of the global economic panorama could conclude without
reference to the seemingly intractable problem of debt. A. would be remembered, in
1986 the General Assembly had held a separate debate on that item. That action,
que.tioned at first, had eventually transformed difference. on the issue into a
consensus for action. That decision, embodied in resolution 41/202, had been·
embraced by all Member States and had been viewed as a positive outcome. It had
been made quite clear that the task of resolving the problem wa. a matter for all
concerned and could not be pursued successfully unless the exports of deveioping
countries gained wider access to the markets of industrialized countries and the
prices of commodities improved.

39. Not all those conditions had been satisfied, and it was therefore necessary to
maintain the constructive attitude and co--operative spirit that had emerged from
recent international meetings where the issue had been discus.sed, which was further
exemplified in the growing interest in adopting Committee decisions by consensus.

40. Mr. SIDDIKY (BRngladesh) said that, despit~ the hopes for social progctiss and
freedom .et forth ill the United Nations Charter, only a few years away from the
next millennium, humanity was Itill contending with seemingly insurmountable
obstacles in attaining those goals. Poverty and d~pr.ivation persi~ted and were
even tolerated despite a century of impressive growth in production and
productivity and unprecedented technological advancement. The ~rospects of growth,
gainful employment and equitable development remainftd uncertain. The squandering
of reeources for sociall unpr(~uctive purposes continued. The ecological balance
and, in the final analysis, the quality of hu~n life was being eroded by excessive
and reckless consumption while ther~ was so much deprivation caused by poverty.

41. World economic performance over the past year had made no appreciable change
in that situation. The world economy continued to exhibit severe imbalances and
dislocations: according to the International Monetary Fund's Annual Report for
1987, the year had been characterized by slow growth in the industrial countries, a
continued decline in commodity prices - vital to the developing cour.tcies - an
intensification of extern~l imbalances and protectioniut pressure and a further
deterioration in the externAl financial situation of many developing countries.

I ...



A/C.2/42/SR."i
Ene)liah
P~ge 10

(Mr. Siddtky, Bangladesh)

The rate of growth of world output in 1986, for instance, had been weaker than
expected. The performance of the indu.trial countries had been disappointing,
since real output haJ declined. Employment in tho.e countries had improved
marginally. There had been a widening of current account imbalances, particularly
amane) three of th~ largest indu.trial countries. All thesp developments had been
accompanied by threat. of protectioni.m and the ri.k of financial market unrest,
whic~ could have werious implication. tor the pro.pects of the world economy.

42. In the 1980. the developing countries had witne.sed the most severe setback to
the development process of the po.t-war era. In that period, the rate of growth of
a large number of developing ~ountrie. had been negative or marginal. Acute debt
.~oblema, falling commodity pfices, trade imbalance., high interest rates and
~latility in the ratee of exchange had shattered the economies of those countries
and .everely dalllllged their development pro.pect.. The annual average rate of
growth of GDP for developing countries durine) the fir.t half of the decade had
fallen to about 1 per cent from the figure of more than 5 per cent during the
preceding five-year perid. There had also been a decline in GDP per car ita in most
of tho.e countrie.. The number of countries with a growth rate of GDP at or below
their population growth rate had increased Sharply during the decade. That had
affected capital accumulation and growth prospect. in those countries and their
standa.:-d of living. Spending in the .ocial .ectors (including health, education,
child welfare and family planning) had been a casualty of the extreme adjustment
mea.ure. that the developing countries had been forced to undertake. UNICEF
studies revealed disturbing increases in child mortality and deterioration in
nutrition and schooling in IIIIlny of those countrie.. Other United Nations studies
in the field of food and agricultu( fielded a melancholy .pectacle of a growing
incidence of hunger and malnutrition.

43. During the 1980s, the developing countries had confronted an increasingly
inhospitable external economic environment. Over the pa.t few year£, they had been
caught in an unprecedented debt cri.i.. Indeed, few acourges in contemporary
experience had claimed so many victims au the external debt situation of those
countrie.. For many of them it had been a major cause of reversal of the
{,evelopment procl9s. Official development as.ietance had etagnated in real terms.
Despite widespread policy reforms, the~ _ had been no private foreign investment.
Bank lending from developed countries had either decelerated or fallen sharply.
Real interest rates remained exce••ive.

44. The trading position of a vast majority of the developing countries had become
inclreaeingly "nfavourable In recent years. The ri.e of the -new protectioni.m" in
the developed countries had thwarted the much-needed expaneion of developing
country exports. Wide.pread recour.e to diversified types of trade restrictions
had given rbe to semi-permanent patterns of lIectoral protection, exacerbated by
falling commodity pricell. Price. in teal terlll8 of cOlllllodiUell, which pr'lduced
two thirds of developing country export earning., had dropped to their j ·west level
since the depre.llion of the 1930s. In 1986, the real earnlngs of the ,leveloping
countriee from commodity exports had been one fifth lower than in 1980. Por the
first time since the colonial .ra, the developing countries had become net
suppliers of resourc.s to the developed industrialized countries.

/ ...



A/C. 2/42/SR. 5
English
Page 11

(Mr. Siddiky, Bangladesh)

45. Since the adoption of the Substantial New Programme of Action for the 1980s
for the Least Developed Countries, the number of those countries had increased by
one quarter. The average annual rate of GDP growch fOL th~ least developtld
countries in the first half of the decade ha~ been a mere 2 per cent, which in
per capita real terma was the equivalent ~f a negative growth rate. Their average
food ard agriCUltural production had dec]jned sharply .nd ex~~ts had bee~ reduced
by one tenth, while official development assistance flow. had stagnated and the
conmi tment of the donor countries to double such flows by 1985 was still largely
unfulfilled. Aid from multilateral agencles had also declined in 1985 and
non-concessional financial tl~, which had increased by an average of more than
100 per cent ev'ery ye.... during the prev.ous decade, recorded a steady fall in th~

1980s. Those difficulties had been compounded by an unbearable debt burden which
at the end of 1985 had ri.en to '39 billion, an increase of 13 ptlr cent over
previous years.

46. The fast deteriorating external economic environment had coqlfllled a large
number of developing countriea, including almost half the least ~eveloped

countries, to undertake adju.t..nt measur.s. Th08~ measure. had resulted in a fall
in investment in the social sectors, an experience which ~emonstrated that the most
vulnerable segments of 80ciety must be protected against the adverse consequences
of tt~se measures. Adjustment must have a human face, it must be growth-oriented
and capable of in1ecting a long-term vitality into the economy of t~e country
concerned and of the world as a whole.

47. A major multilateral response to the ailing world economy had been the seventh
session of the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD), which
had been marked by a positive political atmosphere opening the way for further
negotiations on various issues of importance. The Final Act of that Conference
could givu impetus to the process of NUltilateral co--operation for development, if
the hopes of the Secretary-General of the Conference that ita vast potential could
be translated into concrete actions were fulfilled.

48. The recently concluded joint annual meeting of the W)rld Bank and the
International Monetary Fund had indicated promising new directions for ameliorating
same of the difficulties faced by the developing ccuntries. The situation was so
desperate as to require the ir urgent inple.ntation, wi th the United Nations and
the international financial institutions playing a mlltually supporting role and
relevant conplementary _asures being taken in such /.Irea. as debt and trade.

49. Hi. delegation hoped that those recent positive devalopments would contribute
to a constructive dialogue in the Second Committee.

50. Mr. PEJIC (Yu90slavia) said hi. dplegation endorsed the statement made by the
representative of Guatemal& and Chairrn n of the Group of 77. All the competent
national and international institutions had indicated that the world economic
situation was deteriocating, with serious consequences for the developing
countries, especially the least developed countries of Africa and above all those
in the sub-Saharan region. In 1986 the growth of the world economy had slowed for
the second consecutive year. According to the World Economic Survey, the 9rowth of

I . ..



A/C.2/42/SR.5
English
p~ge 12

(Mr. Pejic, Yugoslavia)

production had dropped from 4.5 per cent in l'364 to 3.4 per cent in 1385 and to
J per cent in 1986. For most developing countrien, however, 1986 had been a year
of decline rather than growth, as was correctly rointed out In the report of the
Committee for Development Planning.

51. The situation in other areas wan no less precarIous. The external financial
situation of most developing countries had aS6umcd critical proportions,
characterized by huge imbalances in trade and international payments, whiJ.e
protectionist pressures and action were mounting and ~ifferenc~e over trade
policies had assumed political significance. Those developments had had an
especially adverse effect on the developing countries, jeopardizing aocial and
political stability in many of them. That could not but affect ~tability and
security in the world as a whole. Tt had long been obvious that the reasons for
that situation were to be found in the existing system of international econom.ic
relations and the inability to find, within its confines, solutions to the problems
besetting mankind. The global and interdependent nature of the problems and their
solutions doomed to failure any isolated or unUateral attempt to deal with them.

52. In spite of the indications of readiness to prvceed in a positive direction
which had appeared at the seventh session of UNCTAD, no significant progress had
been made towards solVing the serious problems afflicting the present-day world.
Therefore, the current session of the United Nations Ger;eral Assembly should be
used to make further progress in the common quest for solutions to outstanding
problems, before those problems became furthe~ aggravated and more difficult to
resolve and their con~equences more serious. The gEneral debate at the current
session of the General A~sembly, and at the recently concluded ann.. ,1 meeting of
the International Monetary Fund and the World Bank, had shown there was general
agreement that the situation of many developing countries was desperate. The
question was why that was so and in whose interest it was to leav~ those problems
unresolved. The developing countries had always maintained that it was only
through constructive dialogue and negotiat ions chat new prospects could be opened
for the solution of inte.national economic problems for the benefit of all. That
position had been reaffirmed once again in the Declaration adopted at th£> lost
recent Ministerial Meeting of the Group of 77.

53. The external debt of developing countries, illOOunting to more than
$U3 1,100 billion had became unbearable and a SOlution to the problem could no
longer be postponed. All the indicators of the pr·ob1em were dismal: in addition
to the 10 per cent increase iu the debt in the past year, the net outflow of
resources from the developing to developed countries had increased by an additi'Jnal
SUS 24 billion, and the trend was likely to contin~~ in the next several years. In
the past year, as the year before, official development assistance had again
decr~ased, while at the same time outlays for debt servicing continued to increase,
~~talling more than SUS 150 billion in 1986. According to the annual report of the
Tnternational Monetary Fund for 1987, the burden of ext~rnal debt had worsened
markedly, with Hie ratio of debt demands to export earnings rising bi 12 per cent
and reaching 42 per cent for the nations which had recently experienced
debt-servicing problems. That had resulted in economic stagnation, social
upheavalr. and politicul instability, which hampered y10bal economic recov£:ry and

I . ..



A/C.2/112/SR. 'i

Enqlish
Page 11

(Mr. Pejic, YU90Rlavi~)

threatened the overall system of international economic and financial relationa.
In such conditions, the number of debtor countries unable to meet their financial
obl igatlons had increased.

54. The current approach to the debt crisis was not commensurate with the
magni tucle and qravity of the problem, nor .]id it provide for the economic growth
and dev(~lopment. of debtor countries. Despi te the ellormous efforts of the
developing countries to adjust their economies, two basic prerequisites - a
favourable international environment and increased external financing - had failed
to matedalize. That failure:: had great.ly reduced the possibilit.ies for further
adjustments.

55. In view of the global proportions of the debt problem and its continued
worsening, it was indispensable to initiate a dialogue between debtor and creditor
countries in which the United Nations could not remain on the sidelines. That had
been recognized in 1986 when the General Assembly had adopted resolution 41/202.
It was therefore necessary, inter alia, to take measures to provide for the
reduction of interest rates, long-term restructuring with a longer grace period,
conversion of the oebt of the least developed countries into grants, greater aCGI' ;,;
to the markets of the developed countries for goods from developing countries and
linking debt servicing to a percentage of the export earnings of those countries.
It would also be necessary to ensure a substantial increase in the flow of
resources to developing countries and to recycle balance-of-payment surpluses of
developed countries.

56. Closely linked to the problem of debt was that of international trade, the
decline of which in 1986 had not been reversed. According to authoritative data,
the export earnings of the developing countries had fallen by 3.3 per cent in
United States dollars, while imports of developing countries in the same period had
fallen by 0.1 per cent, indicating ~ long downward trend that had left nominal
Import values 9.4 per cent below their 1982 level. The net result had been a
considerable increase in the combined trade deficit of the developing countries
during 1986, amounting to SUS 21. 7 billion, or more than triple the defi' ; t of
1985. To complete the picture, data from the ~orld F.conomic Survey sho~ that the
developing countries had lost SUS 94 b1111on1s a result of changes .tn the terms of
trade.

57. In those circumstances, with a further increase in protectionism in developed
countries, contrary to t.he comn,itments undertaken at Punta del Este, and without
greater access for developing c~~ntries in world trade, on more favourable
conditions, those countries could not further their development or meet theh"
international financial obligations.

::.8. Science and technology played an increasingly important role in development.
Rut if conditions were not changed to promote wider access to scienc~ and
technology, they would bypass developing countries, with far-reaching consequences
for the world at large. It was therefore necessary to strengthen international
co-operation and the role of the United Nations and of the relevant organization:.
and to speed up the completion of a code of conduct for the transfer of technol0<1 V.

II •••



A/C.2/42/SR.5
E"9lillh
Page 14

(~l. Pejic, Yugolllavia)

59. The protecti<X1 of the environment wall becoming a focuII of growing
international concer~. Environmental pollution aC!ectftd .veryone in different ways
but ita common d~ ominator wae a widellpread degradation of the quality of life.
For developing countries as well the protection of the enviro~ent was important
and ehould therefore be included in the framework of international co-operation.
In that ~ntext, hie delegation had 148n favourably i.preee~d by the report of the
World Co_iaaion on Environment and Development. Hoftver, the enVlronment should
not becCJlle a limit!ng factor for developllent, ite protection could not and should
not be achieved through the redistribution of existing development reSources but
through an increase in such reSOurces.

60. Hill del.egation hoped that better internati<X1al understanding would help
overcane the current econCllllic and financiAl crisia. That would be in the COl1lllon
interest of developed and developing countries alike .a well as in the interest of
world-wide 80cial progress.

The meeting rose at 4.55 p.m.


